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PER CURI AM *

Thomas and Jani ce Reedy appeal the sentences inposed
followng remand to the district court for resentencing. See

United States v. Reedy, 304 F.3d 358 (5th Cr. 2002). The Reedys

owned and operated a conpany that provided conputerized credit
card verification services to webnasters whose websites contai ned
adult and child pornography. Janice Reedy (Janice) was
resentenced to 168 nonths of inprisonnent and three years of

supervi sed rel ease on each of 11 counts, with the sentences to

" Pursuant to 5THOR R 47.5, the court has determ ned that
this opi nion should not be published and is not precedent except
under the limted circunstances set forth in 5THCQR R 47.5. 4.
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run concurrently. Thomas Reedy (Thomas) was resentenced to 180
mont hs of inprisonnment and three years of supervised rel ease on
each of 12 counts, with the sentences of inprisonnment to run
consecutively to the extent necessary to produce a |life sentence.
As a threshold issue, we nust determ ne whether we have
jurisdiction over Janice’'s appeal. This matter was renmanded to
the district court for a determ nation of excusabl e neglect due
to the late filing of the notice of appeal. On renmand, the
district court denied the notion for an extension of tinme to file
the notice of appeal, holding that Jani ce had not shown excusabl e
neglect. Janice argues that this decision was an abuse of
di scretion because her attorney filed the notice of appeal after
Thomas was sentenced due to the attorney’s belief that the cases
remai ned consolidated followi ng remand. The district court found
that counsel’s failure to tinely file anmounted to nere
i nadvertence because counsel had been provided with witten
notice of the tine for appealing and had signed this notice,
i ndicating his understanding of it. Under these circunstances,

the district court did not abuse its discretion. See Pi oneer

Inv. Servs. Co. v. Brunswi ck Assocs. Ltd. P ship, 507 U S. 380,

392 (1993). Because Janice’s notice of appeal is untinely, we

di sm ss her appeal for lack of jurisdiction. See United States

v. Rodriqguez, 278 F.3d 486, 489-90 (5th Gr. 2002).

Thomas seeks to revisit several issues that were decided in

his prior appeal or that are beyond the scope of this court’s
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remand for resentencing. |In particular, Thomas chal | enges the
district court’s determ nation of the anount of pecuniary gain,
the relevant unit of prosecution, and the denial of his notion
for a judgnent of acquittal based on his contention that the
district court inpermssibly shifted the burden of proof to the
def ense. Because these issues are barred by the | aw of the case,

we do not address them See United States v. Mtthews, 312 F. 3d

652, 657 (5th Cir. 2002).

Thomas al so rai ses a nunber of issues for the first tinme on
appeal. Qur review of these issues is for plain error. To
establish plain error, Thomas nust show. (1) there is an error,

(2) that is clear or obvious, and (3) that affects his

substantial rights. United States v. Calverley, 37 F.3d 160,

162-64 (5th Cr. 1994) (en banc) (citing United States v. A ano,

507 U. S. 725, 731-37 (1993)). Thomms asserts that his Sixth

Amendnent rights were violated pursuant to Blakely v. Washi ngton,

124 S. . 2531 (2004), because his sentence was increased based
on an anount of pecuniary gain found by the district court rather
than the jury. Thomas filed his brief prior to the Suprene

Court’s decision in United States v. Booker, 125 S. C. 738

(2005). In light of Booker, this error is clear and obvious.
However, Thomas has not shown that the error affected his
substantial rights because, although the district court may have
expressed synpathy at the length of his sentence, the court did

not indicate that it would have sentenced Thomas differently
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under an advisory guidelines schene. See United States v.

Creech, 408 F.3d 264, 272 (5th Cr. 2005). Rather, the court
stated that the sentence was appropriate under the facts. Thomas

has not established plain error under Booker. United States v.

Mares, 402 F.3d 511, 520-21 (5th Cir. 2005), petition for cert.

filed (Mar. 31, 2005) (No. 04-9517).

Thomas al so asserts for the first tinme on appeal that the
district court erred by inposing consecutive sentences and by
failing to consider the sentencing factors in 18 U S. C
§ 3553(a). The district court inposed consecutive sentences
pursuant to U.S.S.G 8 5GL.2(d), and it stated that it found no
reason to depart fromthe guidelines and that the | aw was
vi ndi cated by the sentence. Thonmas has not established plain
error with respect to the inposition of consecutive sentences.

See United States v. lzaquirre-Losoya, 219 F.3d 437, 439-42 (5th

Cir. 2000).

Thomas al so contends that his sentence of life inprisonnent
violates the Ei ghth Amendnent. He asserts that he is |ess
cul pabl e than the creators or distributors of child pornography
and that his sentence is disproportionate to his offense. Thomas
al so asserts that the credit card verification services he
provi ded were authorized by the |egislation Congress passed
requi ri ng webnmasters to use credit card verification services to
distribute adult pornography. |In addition to the ten counts of

transporting i nages of mnors engaged in sexually explicit
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conduct, Thomas al so was convicted of one count of conspiracy to
transport such i mages and one count of possession of child

por nography. Al though Thomas has no prior crimnal convictions,
he has pointed to no authority that clearly establishes that the
i nposition of consecutive sentences under these circunstances
renders his sentence grossly disproportionate to his offense.
Accordi ngly, he has not established plain error. See Q ano,

507 U.S. at 734; Harnelin v. Mchigan, 501 U S 957 (1991)

(hol di ng mandatory sentence of life inprisonment wthout parole
for possession of 650g of cocaine did not violate the Eighth
Amendnent ) .

Thomas argues that the district court erred in resentencing
hi munder 18 U.S.C. § 2252 based on ten different inages. He
asserts that the Governnent failed to prove the nunber of
websites that contained the images. The supersedi ng indictnent
listed each image and the website fromwhich it was obtained. At
trial, the investigating officer testified regardi ng each i nage
and the website fromwhich it was obtained. The district court
sentenced Thonmas based on its finding that ten different websites
were involved in the offense, and it chose one count from each of
t hose websites on which to sentence Thomas. In his prior appeal,
Thomas argued that he shoul d have been sentenced based only on
the ten websites that contained child pornography. See Reedy,
304 F.3d at 365 n.5. Thomas has not established that the

district court clearly erred in resentencing himfor ten counts.
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As the CGovernnment concedes, Thomas has established plain

error with respect to the 180-nonth sentence he received for
count 89 (possession of child pornography). The statutory
maxi mum for this offense is five years of inprisonnent.
18 U.S.C. 8§ 2252A(b)(2) (2000). Accordingly, Thomas’s sentence
on Count 89 is vacated, and the matter is remanded to the
district court for resentencing on this count. The renai nder of
Thomas’ s sentence i s AFFI RVED

APPEAL DI SM SSED AS TO JANI CE REEDY; THOVAS REEDY' S SENTENCE

ON COUNT 89 |'S VACATED AND REMANDED TO THE DI STRI CT COURT

FOR RESENTENCI NG THE REMAI NDER OF THOVAS REEDY' S SENTENCE
| S AFFI RMED



